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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Educational Service District No. 112
September 1, 2018 through August 31, 2019

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

The results of our audit of Educational Service District No. 112 are summarized below in
accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

Financial Statements

We issued an unmodified opinion on the fair presentation of the financial statements of each major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).

Internal Control over Financial Reporting:

o Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

e Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the
District.

Federal Awards

Internal Control over Major Programs:

¢ Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

e Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.
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We issued an unmodified opinion on the District’s compliance with requirements applicable to
each of its major federal programs.

We reported no findings that are required to be disclosed in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).

Identification of Major Federal Programs

The following programs were selected as major programs in our audit of compliance in accordance
with the Uniform Guidance.

CEDA No. Program or Cluster Title
84.027 Special Education Cluster (IDEA) — Special Education Grants to States
84.173 Special Education Cluster (IDEA) — Special Education Preschool Grants

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed by
the Uniform Guidance, was $750,000.

The District qualified as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance.

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None reported.

SECTION Il - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED
COSTS

None reported.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Educational Service District No. 112
September 1, 2018 through August 31, 2019

Board of Directors
Educational Service District No. 112
Vancouver, Washington

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Educational Service District No. 112,
as of and for the year ended August 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated March 11, 2020.

The District has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis information that governmental
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America has determined is
necessary to supplement, although not required to be part of, the basic financial statements. Our
opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control.
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A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of the District’s compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However,
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this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It also serves to
disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess government
operations.

N v//zéee?%

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

March 11, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Educational Service District No. 112
September 1, 2018 through August 31, 2019

Board of Directors
Educational Service District No. 112
Vancouver, Washington

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM

We have audited the compliance of Educational Service District No. 112, with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District’s major
federal programs for the year ended August 31, 2019. The District’s major federal programs are
identified in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
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referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the District’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended August 31, 2019.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the District’s internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each
major federal program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It also
serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess
government operations.

N %M%

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

March 11, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Educational Service District No. 112
September 1, 2018 through August 31, 2019

Board of Directors
Educational Service District No. 112
Vancouver, Washington

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Educational Service District No. 112, as of and for the year ended
August 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements as listed on page 16.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
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due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Educational Service District No. 112, as of August 31, 2019, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required
supplementary information listed on page 16 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis information that
governmental accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic
financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as a whole. The accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
This schedule is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

The additional risk pools information and schedule presenting effect of long term obligations for
funding state-mandated and administered retirement benefit plans are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 11, 2020 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
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internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

N %fz{a?%

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

March 11, 2020
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FINANCIAL SECTION

Educational Service District No. 112
September 1, 2018 through August 31, 2019

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Net Position — 2019

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position — 2019
Statement of Cash Flows — 2019

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position — 2019

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position — 2019

Notes to Financial Statements — 2019

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedules of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios and Notes — 2019

Schedules of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability — PERS 1, SERS 2/3, TRS 1,
TRS 2/3 - 2019

Schedules of Employer Contributions — PERS 1, SERS 2/3, TRS 1, TRS 2/3 — 2019

SW WA Workers” Compensation Trust — Claims Development Information — 2019

Notes to the SW WA Workers” Compensation Trust — Claims Development Information
— 2019

SW WA Risk Management Cooperative — Claims Development Information — 2019

Notes to the SW WA Risk Management Cooperative — Claims Development Information
— 2019

SW WA Workers’ Compensation Trust Reconciliation of Claims Liabilities — 2019

SW WA Risk Management Cooperative Reconciliation of Claims Liabilities — 2019

SUPPLEMENTARY AND OTHER INFORMATION

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards — 2019

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards — 2019

SW WA Unemployment Compensation Pool — Claims Development Information — 2019

Notes to the SW WA Unemployment Compensation Pool — Claims Development
Information — 2019

SW WA Unemployment Compensation Pool — Reconciliation of Claims Liabilities —
2019
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SW WA Workers” Compensation Trust — Public Entity Risk Pool List of Participating
Members — 2019

DES Schedule of Expenses — SW WA Workers’ Compensation Trust — 2019

SW WA Risk Management Cooperative — Public Entity Risk Pool List of Participating
Members — 2019

DES Schedule of Expenses — SW WA Risk Management Cooperative — 2019

SW WA Unemployment Compensation Pool — Public Entity Risk Pool List of
Participating Members — 2019

DES Schedule of Expenses — SW WA Unemployment Compensation Pool — 2019

Presenting Effect of Long Term Obligations for Funding State-mandated and
Administered Retirement Benefit Plans — 2019
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Educational Service District No. 112
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 1, 2018 THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2019

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of Educational Service District No. 112 (the District) were developed under
authority of the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction. Except where noted as exceptions, the
rules of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) are the basis for accounting and financial
reporting in the District. The following summary of the more significant accounting policies is
presented to assist the reader in interpreting the financial statements and other data in this report.
These policies should be viewed as an integral part of the accompanying financial statements.

Reporting Entity

The District is one of nine municipal corporations of the State of Washington organized pursuant to
Revised Code of Washington (RCW) Title 28A for the purpose of (1) providing cooperative and
informational services to local school districts; (2) assisting the state superintendent of public
instruction and the state board of education in the performance of their respective statutory or
constitutional duties; and (3) providing services to school districts to assure equal educational
opportunities.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, management has considered all potential
component units in defining the reporting entity. Based on the standards set by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), there were no component units of the District. The District is a
separate legal entity and is fiscally independent from all other units of government.

The District serves 30 school districts in Clark, Cowlitz, Klickitat, Pacific, Skamania and Wahkiakum
Counties. Oversight responsibility for the District’'s operations is vested with the Board of Directors
who are elected by the school directors of the educational service district, one from each of seven
educational service district board-member districts. Management of the District is appointed by and
accountable to the Board of Directors. Fiscal responsibility, including budget authority, the power to
operate cooperatives, set fees for services and issue debt consistent with the provisions of state
statutes, rest with the Board. For financial reporting purposes, the District’s financial statements
include all funds that are controlled by the District’s Board of Directors and managed by the
administrative staff, unless noted hereafter.

Basis of Accounting and Reporting

The District’s accounting policies, as reflected in the accompanying financial statements, conform to
the Accounting Manual for Educational Service Districts, prescribed by the Office of Superintendent of
Public Instruction (OSPI). This manual allows for a practice that differs from generally accepted
accounting principles in the following manner: (1) The Management Discussion and Analysis is not
required.

The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

The activities of the District rely significantly on fees and charges for support and are reported as
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principle ongoing operations. Operating
expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of providing services, administrative expenses,
depreciation on capital assets, and gain/loss on sale of assets. Grants used to finance operations and
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expenses not related to the provision of District services are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses as well as interest and investment income, interest expense, lease income from properties
or equipment, and changes in joint ventures.

The District reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Operating fund is the District’s primary fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
District that are not reported in the following funds.

The Workers’ Compensation Insurance fund accounts for workers’ compensation payroll
taxes collected from members, and the payment of associated claims, assessments and
expenses. The Southwest Washington Workers’ Compensation Trust is a proprietary fund
established in 1983 for the purpose of providing group insurance and claims control for
workers’ compensation to the member school districts and educational service districts. (See
Note 7 for for further disclosures.)

The Unemployment Insurance fund accounts for the collection of premium from members of
the fund and the related payment of associated claims and expenses. The Southwest
Washington Unemployment Compensation Pool is a proprietary fund established in 1978 for
the purpose of providing group insurance and claims control for unemployment compensation
to the member districts and such other agencies as the members of the cooperative shall
deem appropriate. (See Note 7 for futher disclosures.)

The Property and Casualty Risk Management Insurance fund accounts for premiums
collected from members and set aside for the payment of deductibles on member
property/casualty insurance claims. The Southwest Washington Risk Management /
Insurance Cooperative is a proprietary fund established in 1986 for the purpose of providing
group self-funding, claims control, and risk management for property / casualty liabilities to
member school districts and educational service districts. (See Notes 7 and 8 for further
disclosures.)

The Child Care Fund is a proprietary fund established in 1991 for the purpose of providing
child care services to local school districts, through the collection of parent fees. The District
provides administrative support to the consortium; the consortium contracts with a non-profit
agency for its employees.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee or agency capacity.
The District, at one time, provided a deferred compensation program for its employees. This account
is no longer accessible to employees and closed in the year ended August 31, 2019 when the final
depositor received their funds.

The District has prepared an annual program report to OSPI in a format issued separately. These
reports require specific information and formats and are not presented on the basis of generally
accepted accounting principles.

Assets, Liabilities, and Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Deposits & Investments — see Note 2

Receivables

For the Operating fund, accounts and contracts receivable represent the value of goods and
services provided and invoiced to clients as of fiscal year-end. For remaining proprietary funds,
the amounts represent balances due from clients within thirty days of invoice dates.
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All receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible balances. Uncollectible accounts
are evaluated for write-off on an annual basis.

Prepaid Items & Inventory
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in the financial statements.

Inventory balances consist of expendable supplies held for consumption by operating activities in
future fiscal periods. The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time inventory items are
consumed. The District does not maintain material amounts of inventory.

Capital Assets and Depreciation — See Note 3

Compensated Absences
Employees earn vacation leave at varying rates in accordance with District policy. Vacation is
payable upon termination.

Employees earn sick leave at a rate of 12 days per year and may accumulate an unlimited sick
leave balance. Under the provisions of RCW Chapter 28A.400.210, sick leave accumulated by
District employees is reimbursed at death or retirement at the rate of 1 day for each 4 days of
accrued leave, limited to 180 accrued days. This chapter also provides for an annual buy-back of
an amount up to the maximum annual accumulation of 12 days. For buy-back purposes,
employees may accumulate such leave to a maximum of 192 days, including annual
accumulation, as of December 31 of each year.

The balance reported in the statement of net position as of August 31, 2019, represents the
aggregate amount of vacation and sick leave payable for all eligible employees of the District.
Changes in estimated liabilities for sick and vacation leave balances for employees working in the
proprietary funds are charged as current expense to those funds.

Other Accrued Liabilities
These accounts consist of accrued wages and accrued employee benefits.

Deposits
Deposits consist of tenant deposits and advance lease payments.

Long Term Debt — See Note 4

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue consists of balances acquired by the District from award funders in advance of
meeting eligibility requirements and subject to meeting those eligibility requirements as of fiscal
year end. Eligibility requirements are expected to be met within 12-18 months.

Deferred Outflows & Inflows

Accounting principles for pensions under generally accepted accounting principles (see Note 5)
requires the District to recognize deferred inflows and outflows on the Statement of Net Position
related to the proportionate share of the Washington State Department of Retirement System’s
deferred income or expense items, to be recognized over a number of years, for changes in
experience, assumptions, proportion, contributions and investment earnings. Benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with benefit terms.

Generally accepted accounting principles for other post-retirement employee benefits (OPEB)
(see Note 6) require the District to recognize deferred inflows and outflows on the Statement of
Net Position related to the single-employer plan administered under the Washington Health Care
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Authority’s actuarially determined deferred income or expense items, to be recognized over a
number of years, for changes in experience, assumptions, contributions, and investment
earnings.

Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses
In conformance with the Accounting Manual for Educational Service Districts, Operating Revenues
are defined as revenues generated directly from program activity including:
¢ Revenue from those who purchase, use or directly benefit from the goods or services of
the program;
e Revenue from other governments, entities and individuals, if such revenue is restricted to
a specific program or programs; and
e Earnings on permanent fund investments if restricted to a program specifically identified
in the agreement.
e Current year pension liability expense from changes in net pension liability (see Note 5).
e Current year OPEB expense from changes in total OPEB liability (see Note 6).
Under these guidelines, program-specific operating grants and contributions are presented as
operating revenue.

Nonoperating revenues and expenditures include interest earnings on investments not restricted to
program benefit, interest expense on debt, other asset and financing activities, lease income and
triple net collections from rental of excess capacity, surplus sale of personal property, and changes
from investments in joint ventures.

NOTE 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

All of the District’'s bank balances are insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) or by collateral held in a multiple financial institution collateral pool administered by the
Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC).

Statutes authorize the District to invest in (1) securities, certificates, notes, bonds, short-term
securities, or other obligations of the United States, and (2) deposits in any state bank or trust
company, national banking association, stock savings bank, mutual savings bank, savings and loan
association, and any branch bank engaged in banking in the state in accordance with RCW Chapters
30A.04.300 if the institution has been approved by the Public Deposit Protection Commission to hold
public deposits and has segregated eligible collateral having a value of not less than its maximum
liability.

The Office of the Clark County Treasurer is the ex-officio treasurer for the District. The District is a
participant in the Clark County Investment Pool, an external investment pool managed and operated
by the Office of the Clark County Treasurer under authority of RCW 36.29, which authorizes county
treasurers to invest funds of participants. In this capacity, the Clark County Treasurer receives daily
deposits and transacts investments on behalf of the District.

On August 31, 2019 the Clark County Treasurer was holding cash and short-term residual
investments of surplus cash as follows:

Fair Value
Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 18,448
Investments, Clark County Investment Pool 38,646,845
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents &
Short-Term Investments $ 38,665,293

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the District considers all highly liquid investments
(including restricted assets) with a maturity of twelve months or less when purchased to be cash and
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cash equivalents. Investments held by the Clark County Treasurer are considered highly liquid as
they are accessible on a daily basis, equivalent to a cash account. The Clark County Treasurer bears
the risk of maturity in the Clark County Investment Pool. Average maturity of the Clark County
Investment pool as of August 31, 2019 was 15.6 months. Average maturity for the year ending
August 31, 2019 ranged from 5.8 months to 15.6 months, with an annual average of 9.1 months. In
September 2019, the average maturity had fallen to 9.6 months.

Credit Risk

The Clark County Investment Pool is considered extremely low risk. The Pool is operated in a manner
consistent with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act
of 1940. Rule 2a-7 funds are limited to high quality obligations with limited maximum and average
maturities, the effect of which is to minimize both market and credit risk. The Pool’s portfolio is made
up of high quality, highly liquid securities, and its relatively short average maturity reduces the Pool’s
price sensitivity to market interest rate fluctuations. The Pool reduces credit risk by purchasing
securities rated at the highest quality by credit rating organizations at the time of purchase.The Pool
does not contain any structured investment vehicles or collateralized debt obligations. The Clark
County Treasurer’s investment policy is established by the Investment Committee consisting of
member participants.

As of the most recent report date, fair value of the Pool equaled amortized cost. It is the policy of the
Pool to permit participants to withdraw their investments on a daily basis; therefore the District’s
investment balance in the Pool is equal to fair value. Fair value is measured using quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets that the pool can access at the measurement date (Level 1 Inputs).
Observable markets include exchange markets, dealer markets, brokered markets and principal-to-
principal markets.

The Pool has a strong degree of asset diversification to minimize risk and maintain adequate rates of
return. As of August 31, 2019, the distribution of investments of the Pool was as follows:

% of Pool based
Investment Type on Fair Value
Washington State Local Government 294 %
Investment Pool
Federal Agencies Semi-Annual Coupon 27.5%
Treasury Coupons 23.6 %
Commercial Paper 10.2%
Supranationals 6.6%
Municipal Bonds 1.0%
Bank Deposits 1.7%

Source: Clark County Treasurer Investment Pool,
August 2019 Monthly Report

The Pool is not insured or guaranteed by any government; therefore, maintenance of principal is not
fully insured. The Clark County Investment Pool does not have a credit rating. As of the August 31,
2019, NAV per share was $1.003330.

The District’s participation in the Clark County Investment Pool is voluntary; the pool is not rated by a
nationally recognized statistical rating organization (NRSRO). The County Treasurer publishes an
annual report, available on the Treasurer’s web site (https://treasury.clark.wa.gov).

Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of the counterparty to an investment
transaction, the District would not be able to recover the value of the investment or collateral
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securities. Of the District’s total investment position of $38,646,845, no balances are exposed to
custodial credit risk. The District does not have a policy for custodial credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk
The District does not have investments in any one issuer that represents five percent or more of total
investments.

Interest Rate Risk

As of August 31, 2019, the Clark County Investment Pool’s average maturity is 15.6 months (468
days). As a means of limiting its exposure to rising interest rates, securities purchased in the Pool
must have a final maturity, or weighted average life, no longer than five years. While the Pool’s
market value is calculated on a monthly basis, unrealized gains and losses are not distributed to
participants. The Pool distributes earnings monthly using an amortized cost methodology.

NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include property, facilities, and large equipment, are reported in the Operating
fund and capitalized at total acquisition cost, provided such cost exceeds $15,000 and has an
expected useful life of more than five years. Prior to September 1, 2015, the capitalization threshold
was established by Board policy at $50,000. Property, facilities, and large equipment that are
purchased using Federal money are subject to records maintenance if the acquisition cost is over
$5,000.

Depreciation is recorded on all depreciable capital assets on a straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives, based on the month placed in service:

Asset Years
Vehicles 5-10
Equipment 5-20
Buildings and structures 10-40
Land improvements 5-40

Major expenses for capital assets, including capital leases and major repairs that increase the
effectiveness or efficiency of the asset are capitalized. Assets under the capitalization threshold,
maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals are accounted for as expenses when incurred.

Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2019 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
9/1/2018 8/31/2019
Capital assets not depreciated:
Land $ 6,569,922 334,500 | $ - | $6,904,422
Construction in progress 74,808 497,454 (180,262) 392,000
Total capital assets not
depreciated 6,644,730 831,954 (180,262) 7,296,422
Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings & Improvements 22,415,002 561,945 - | 22,976,947
Furniture, Fixtures, Other 216,947 134,561 (3,902) 347,606
Equipment & Software
Transportation Equipment 2,480,283 398,437 - 2,878,720
Land Improvements 48,827 - - 48,827
Total depreciable capital assets 25,161,059 1,094,943 (3,902) | 26,252,100
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Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
9/1/2018 8/31/2019
Less accumulated depreciation
for:
Buildings & Improvements (5,148,161) (978,878) - | (6,127,039)
Improvements, Furniture, (27,713) (31,537) - (59,250)
Fixtures, Other Equipment &
Software
Transportation Equipment (1,515,801) (257,421) - | (1,773,222)
Land Improvements (6,077) (2,515) - (8,592)
Total accumulated depreciation (6,697,752) (1,270,351) - | (7,968,103)
Total depreciable assets, net 18,463,307 (175,408) (3,902) 18,283,997
Total assets, net $25,108,037 | $ 656,546 | $ (184,164) | $25,580,419
Construction Commitments
The District has active construction projects as of August 31, 2019:
Project Spent to Date Remaining
as of Commitment
August 31, 2019
District land improvements 74,808 $ -
Kalama Early Learning Center leasehold
improvements 99,034 36,570
EarlylLearning portable 218,158 114,055
TOTAL Construction in Progress $ 392,000 $ 150,625

Lease of Capital Assets (Real Property)
The District leases space to tenants in buildings not currently needed (excess capcity) by the District

for program service delivery. Lease income is classified as nonoperating revenue. A brief description
of properties under lease commitments follows.

Business Park

Tenant Leases, Buildings: On September 1, 2015, the District purchased the business park it
occupied under previous long-term lease agreements; the purchase was for land and five
buildings totaling 214,211 square feet. The District currently occupies 39% of the building
square footage; the remainder is under lease occupancy agreements that were transferred
from the seller. Current leases have termination dates ranging from December 31, 2020 to
April 30, 2024, excluding unexecuted options to renew.

Food Vendor Lease: The District leases approximately 336 square feet, located within its
primary building to a vendor to provide food & beverage service conveniences to employees
and conference center attendees. The current lease terminates on May 31, 2021.

Short-Term Sublets; The District leases a small amount of office space to other governmental
agencies on one-year lease agreements, as capacity is available.
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A schedule of business park property, of which certain buildings are under leasing

agreements, is detailed below:

Business Park Capital Assets, Allocated to Allocated to
as of August 31, 2019 Total Cost District Operations | Tenant Leases
Land, at purchase date $ 4,076,965 $ 2,169,382 $ 1,907,583
Land Improvements 48,827 48,827 -
Accumulated Depreciation,

Land Improvements (8,592) (8,592) -
Buildings, at purchase date 13,991,578 7,147,444 6,844,134
Accumulated Depreciation,

Buildings (2,799,400) (1,430,043) (1,369,357)
Building Improvements 3,297,487 3,297,487 -
Accumulated Depreciation,

Building Improvements (2,609,471) (2,609,471)

Total Business Park Capital

Assets 21,414,857 12,663,140 8,751,717
Total Accumulated

Depreciation, Business Park

Assets (5,417,463) (4,048,106) (1,369,357)

STEPS Lease Sublet

The District leases a 6,600 square-foot building in Longview, Washington for program service
delivery to that area. Approximately 21% of the building is sublet to a commercial operation.
The current sublease terminates on August 31, 2023.

Lease income for the fiscal year ending August 31, 2019 is detailed below:

Lease Income
Business Park:

Tenant leases $ 782,960
Food Vendor lease 6,864
Other one-year sublet agreements 9,651

STEPS lease sublet 8,187
Total Lease Income $ 807,662

A schedule of lease income commitments is provided below, including consideration of options to
extend that have been exercised as of the reporting date:

Fiscal Year Ending

August 31, Lease Agreements
2020 $ 803,998
2021 584,047
2022 468,156
2023 389,046
2024 92,830
2025 thereafter -

Lease agreements may include payment of triple net fees for building and common area
maintenance. Triple net fees are reported as nonoperating revenue and totaled $190,982 for the year
ending August 31, 2019.

Page 32



Educational Service District No. 112

NOTES TO 2018-2019 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 9

NOTE 4: LONG-TERM DEBT, LIABILITIES AND LEASES

Long-Term Debt

The District issues general obligation bonds and other debt instruments through direct borrowings
and placements to finance capital facility improvements, construction and land acquisition for
purposes described in the table below. The following is a summary of long-term general obligation
bonds of the District for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2019:

Maturity Interest Original Amount of
Purpose Range Rate Amount Annual
Installments
Land purchase — NE 15t Street, 10/1/18- 3.75% $ 1,880,000 | $163,284-
Vancouver WA (refinanced 2013 4/1/2028 $219,800
issuance)
Remodel of Hough Early Learning 3/1/15- 3.87% $ 1,000,000 | $30,000-
Center- 1801 Esther Street, Vancouver 9/1/34 $70,000
WA
Business Park purchase & remodel for 9/1/2016 — 4.25% $ 9,250,000 | $605,000-
main business facility, Bond A- 2500 NE 9/1/2027 $960,000
65" Avenue, Vancouver WA
Business Park purchase & remodel for 9/1/2028- 4.25% $ 9,750,000 | $1,050,000-
main business facility, Bond B- 2500 NE 9/1/2035 $1,405,000
65" Avenue, Vancouver WA
Land/Building purchase for Cowlitz 12/1/2016- 2.50% $ 1,485,000 | $133,000-
County Therapeutic Program-1946 8" 6/1/2026 $165,000
Avenue, Longview WA
Land/Building purchase for Parkcrest 10/1/19- 3.60% $ 725,000 | $41,220-
Early Learning Center-712 SE Parkcrest 10/1/29 $80,266
Avenue, Vancouver WA

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for privately placed general obligation bonds are as

follows:

Fiscal Year Ending August 31 Principal Interest

2020, Current Portion $ 1,096,086 | $§ 861,987
2021 1,136,800 815,173
2022 1,174,406 770,100
2023 1,225,334 723,333
2024 1,273,597 674,691
2025-2029 6,457,425 2,588,780
2030-2034 6,306,220 1,279,345
2035-2039 2,785,000 118,827

Note Payable

During the year ending August 31, 2019, the District received federal project loan funds through a

community development block grant for a portable classroom project at Captain Strong Elementary
School, located at 1002 NW 6" Avenue, Battleground WA. The portable classroom is designated for
service to children and families in the Early Childhood Education and Assistance Program (ECEAP),
which serves families and children at or below 110% of the federal poverty level. The project is in
progress as of August 31, 2019 and is scheduled for completion no later than December 31, 2019.
The amount of the zero-interest loan available is $280,600 with required matching funds of $79,668.
Annual payments will approximate $7,015 if the full balance available is issued. The current balance
of the note payable is $217,780 for construction activities to date.
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The length of the restrictive period for the note is twenty years and begins after the construction is
complete, all funds have beeen drawn and the final project reporting requirements have been met. If
anticipated activites are carried out by the District, 50% of the note will be forgiven at the end of the
restrictive period (year twenty). Otherwise, the entire note will be payable in full on that date.

Operating Lease(s)

The District is committed under various leases for space and equipment. All leases are considered
operating leases for accounting purposes under current guidance because the District does not
acquire interests in the property and leases are subject to cancellation at any time during the lease for
changes in funding availability.

Lease payments for the year ended August 31, 2019 totaled $466,517, of which $6,250 was
capitalized during construction for leasehold improvements. Future minimum rental commitments for
multi-year operating leases are presented in the table below.

Amount Committed as of

Fiscal Year Ending August 31, 8/31/19

2020 $ 314,779
2021 251,165
2022 168,785
2023 143,599
2024 35,925
2025 thereafter -

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
During the fiscal year ended August 31, 2019, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
9/1/18 8/31/19

Notes Payable $ -|$ 217,780 | $ -|'$ 217,780 | $ -
Direct Placement Bonds
Payable 21,731,000 725,000 (1,001,132) | 21,454,868 1,096,086
Compensated Absences
(unfunded portion) (Note 1) 1,357,262 158,596 - 1,515,858 160,000
Claims Reserves (Note 7) 3,888,320 (170,313) 3,718,007 1,772,078
IBNR (Note 7) 2,288,639 111,885 2,400,524 1,114,502
Unallocated Loss
Adjustment Expenses (Note
7) 700,634 - (246,134) 454,500
Future L&l Assessments 939,409 148,383 1,087,792
Total OPEB Liability (Note
6) 9,135,740 4,166,784 13,302,524 187,724
Net Pension Liability (NPL)
(Note 5)-

NPL TRS 1 3,367,899 - (349,702) 3,018,197

NPL TRS 2/3 527,502 214,792 - 742,294

NPL SERS 2/3 2,908,908 - (666,026) 2,242,882

NPL PERS 1 7,069,486 (718,652) 6,350,834
Total Long Term Liabilities $53,914,799 | $ 5,743,220 $(3,151,959) | $56,506,060 | $4,330,390

NOTE 5: PENSION PLANS

The District is required to provide retirement benefits for substantially all qualifying employees

through the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the
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primary government of the state of Washington. Generally accepted accounting principles require,
among other provisions, that the District recognize its proportionate share of the DRS plans’
underfunded (or overfunded) status. The District has no independent ability to fund or satisfy pension
liabilities outside of Washington state’s legislatively adopted contribution rates. Assessments now
and in the future are made based on the legislatively-mandated rates and are paid by the District on
salaries and wages, as earned, in future years.

General Information

DRS prepares a stand-alone comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for each pension plan. The pension plan’s basic
financial statement is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. The measurement date of
the pension plans is June 30. Benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.

For the purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of pension plans administered by DRS and additions to/deductions from the plans’ net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plans.

Detailed information about the pension plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued DRS CAFR. Copies of the report may be obtained by contacting the Washington State
Department of Retirement Systems, P.O. Box 48380, Olympia WA 98504-8380; or online at
http://www.drs.wa.gov./administrations/annual-report.

Membership Participation

Substantially all of the District’s full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the
following three contributory, multi-employer, cost-sharing statewide retirement systems managed by
DRS: Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS), Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) and
School Employees’ Retirement System (SERS).

Membership participation by retirement plan as of June 30, 2019, was as follows:

Inactive Vested Retired
Members, Members and
Entitled to, but Beneficiaries
not yet Receiving Receiving
Plan Active Members Benefits Benefits
PERS 1 1,535 401 45,792
SERS 2 28,494 6,175 10,072
SERS 3 35,746 8,983 10,007
TRS 1 349 120 32,645
TRS 2 21,788 2,779 5,874
TRS 3 55,733 8,675 13,745

The latest actuarial valuation date for all plans was June 30, 2018.
Source: Washington State Office of the State Actuary

Membership & Plan Benefits
Certificated employees are members of TRS. Classified employees are members of PERS (if Plan 1)
or SERS. Plan 1 under the TRS and PERS programs are defined benefit pension plans whose
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members joined the system on or before September 30, 1977. TRS 1 and PERS 1 are closed to new
entrants.

TRS Plan Information

TRS was established in 1938, and its retirement provisions are contained in RCW Chapters 41.34
and 41.32. TRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three
separate plans for membership purposes: Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans and Plan 3 is a
defined benefit plan with a defined contribution component. TRS eligibility for membership
requires service as a certificated public school employee working in an instructional,
administrative or supervisory capacity.

TRS is comprised of three separate plans for accounting purposes: Plan 1, Plan 2/3, and Plan 3.
Plan 1 accounts for the defined benefits of Plan 1 members. Plan 2/3 accounts for the defined
benefits of Plan 2 members and the defined benefit portion of benefits for Plan 3 members. Plan
3 accounts for the defined contribution portion of benefits for Plan 3 members. Although members
can only be a member of either Plan 2 or Plan 3, the defined benefit portions of Plan 2 and Plan 3
are accounted for in the same pension trust fund. All assets of this Plan 2/3 defined benefit plan
may legally be used to pay the defined benefits of any of the Plan 2 or Plan 3 members or
beneficiaries, as defined by the terms of the plan. Therefore, Plan 2/3 is considered to be a single
plan for accounting purposes.

TRS Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. TRS 1 members were vested after
the completion of five years of eligible service. Retirement benefits are determined as two percent
of the average final compensation (AFC), for each year of service credit, up to a maximum of 60
percent, divided by twelve. The AFC is the total earnable compensation for the two consecutive
highest-paid fiscal years, divided by two. Members are eligible for retirement at any age after 30
years of service, or at the age of 60 with five years of service, or at the age of 55 with 25 years of
service. Other benefits include temporary and permanent disability payments, an optional cost-of-
living adjustment (COLA), and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the
Department of Labor and Industries.

TRS Plan 2/3 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are
determined as two percent of the average final compensation (AFC) per year of service for Plan 2
members and one percent of AFC for Plan 3 members. The AFC is the monthly average of the 60
consecutive highest-paid service credit months. There is no cap on years of service credit.
Members are eligible for normal retirement at the age of 65 with at least five years of service
credit. Retirement before age 65 is considered an early retirement. TRS Plan 2/3 members, who
have at least 20 years of service credit and are 55 years of age or older, are eligible for early
retirement with a reduced benefit.

The benefit is reduced by a factor that varies according to age, for each year before age 65. TRS
Plan 2/3 members who have 30 or more years of service credit, were hired prior to May 1, 2013,
and are at least 55 years old, can retire under one of two provisions: With a benefit that is
reduced by three percent for each year before age 65; or with a benefit that has a smaller (or no)
reduction (depending on age) that imposes stricter return-to-work rules. TRS Plan 2/3 members
hired on or after May 1, 2013, have the option to retire early by accepting a reduction of five
percent for each year of retirement before age 65. This option is available only to those who are
age 55 or older and have at least 30 years of service. TRS Plan 2/3 retirement benefits are also
actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor benefit. Other benefits include duty and non-
duty disability payments, a cost-of-living allowance (based on the Consumer Price Index), capped
at three percent annually and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the
Department of Labor and Industries.

PERS Plan Information

PERS was established in 1947, and its retirement benefit provisions are contained in RCW
Chapters 41.34 and 41.40. PERS is a cost-sharing, multi-employer retirement system. PERS
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Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. PERS 1 members were vested after the
completion of five years of eligible service. Retirement benefits are determined as two percent of
the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of service. The AFC
is the average of the member’s 24 highest consecutive service months. Members are eligible for
retirement from active status at any age with at least 30 years of service, at age 55 with at least
25 years of service, or at age 60 with at least five years of service.

Members retiring from inactive status prior to the age of 65 may receive actuarially reduced
benefits. PERS Plan 1 retirement benefits are actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a
survivor benefit. Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, an optional cost-of-
living adjustment (COLA), and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the
Department of Labor and Industries.

SERS Plan Information

SERS was established by the legislature in 1998, and the plan became effective in 2000. SERS
retirement benefit provisions are established in RCW Chapters 41.34 and 41.35. SERS is a cost-
sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of two separate plans for membership
purposes. SERS Plan 2 is a defined benefit plan and SERS Plan 3 is a defined benefit plan with a
defined contribution component. SERS members include classified employees of school districts
and educational service districts. SERS is reported as two separate plans for accounting
purposes: Plan 2/3 and Plan 3. Plan 2/3 accounts for the defined benefits of Plan 2 members and
the defined benefit portion of benefits for Plan 3 members. Plan 3 accounts for the defined
contribution portion of benefits for Plan 3 members. Although members can only be a member of
either Plan 2 or Plan 3, the defined benefit portions of Plan 2 and Plan 3 are accounted for in the
same pension trust fund. All assets of this Plan 2/3 defined benefit plan may legally be used to
pay the defined benefits of any of the Plan 2 or Plan 3 members or beneficiaries. Therefore, Plan
2/3 is considered to be a single plan for accounting purposes.

SERS provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as
two percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of
service for Plan 2 and one percent of AFC for Plan 3. The AFC is the monthly average of the
member’s 60 highest-paid consecutive service months before retirement, termination or death.
There is no cap on years of service credit. Members are eligible for retirement with a full benefit at
65 with at least five years of service credit. Retirement before age 65 is considered an early
retirement. SERS members, who have at least 20 years of service credit and are 55 years of age
or older, are eligible for early retirement with a reduced benefit.

The benefit is reduced by a factor that varies according to age, for each year before age 65.
SERS members who have 30 or more years of service credit and are at least 55 years old can
retire under one of two provisions, if hired prior to May 2, 2013: With a benefit that is reduced by
three percent for each year before age 65; or with a benefit that has a smaller (or no) reduction
(depending on age) that imposes stricter return-to-work rules. SERS members hired on or after
May 1, 2013, have the option to retire early by accepting a reduction of five percent for each year
of retirement before age 65. This option is available only to those who are age 55 or older and
have at least 30 years of service. SERS retirement benefits are also actuarially reduced to reflect
the choice of a survivor benefit. Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, a
cost- of-living allowance (based on the Consumer Price Index), capped at three percent annually
and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor and
Industries.

Plan Contributions

The employer contribution rates for PERS, TRS, and SERS (Plans 1, 2, and 3) and the TRS and
SERS Plan 2 employee contribution rates are established by the Pension Funding Council based
upon the rates set by the Washington state legislature. The methods used to determine the
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contribution requirements are established under RCW Chapters 41.34 and 41.40 for PERS, Chapters
41.34 and 41.35 for SERS, and Chapters 41.34 and 41.32 for TRS. Employers do not contribute to
the defined contribution portions of TRS Plan 3 or SERS Plan 3. Under current law, the employer
must contribute 100 percent of the employer-required contribution. The employee contribution rate for
Plan 1 in PERS and TRS is set by statute at six percent and does not vary from year to year.

The employer and employee contribution rates for the PERS plan are effective as of July 1. SERS
and TRS contribution rates are effective as of September 1. The pension plan contribution rates
(expressed as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2018 and 2019 are listed below:

Pension Rates
| 7/1/19 Rate | 7118 Rate |
PERS 1
Member Contribution Rate 6.00% 6.00%
Employer Contribution Rate 12.86% 12.83%
Pension Rates
9/1/19 Rate 9/1/18 Rate |
TRS 1
Member Contribution Rate 6.00% 6.00%
Employer Contribution Rate 15.51% 15.41%
TRS 2
Member Contribution Rate 7.77% 7.06%
Employer Contribution Rate 15.51% 15.41%
TRS 3
Member Contribution Rate varies*® varies*
Employer Contribution Rate 15.51% 15.41% **
SERS 2
Member Contribution Rate 8.25% 7.27%
Employer Contribution Rate 13.19% 13.58%
SERS 3
Member Contribution Rate varies* varies*
Employer Contribution Rate 13.19% 13.58% **
Note: The DRS administrative rate of .0018 is included in the employer rate.
* = Variable from 5% to 15% based on rate selected by the member.
** = Defined benéefit portion only.

The Collective Net Pension Liability
The collective net pension liabilities as of June 30, 2019 for the pension plans the District participated
in are reported in the following table:

Dollars in Thousands PERS 1 SERS 2/3 TRS 1 TRS 2/3
Total Pension Liability $ 11,696,634 | $§ 6,352,843 | § 8,355,496 | $§ 16,545,194
Plan fiduciary net position | $§ (7,851,279) | $§ (6,118,345) | $§ (5,879,693) | $ (15,942,660)
Participating employers’ | ¢ 545355 | § 234498 | $ 2475803 | $ 602,534
net pension liability

Plan fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the 67.12% 96.31% 70.37% 96.36%
total pension liability
The District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (NPL)

As of June 30, 2019, the District reported a total liability of $12,354,207 for its proportionate shares of
the individual plans’ collective net pension liability. The employer’s proportionate share of the
collective net pension liability is based on annual contributions for each of the employers participating
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in the DRS administered plans. At June 30, 2019, the District’s proportionate share of each plan’s net
pension liability is reported below:

June 30, 2019 PERS 1 SERS 2/3 TRS 1 TRS 2/3
District’'s Annual Contributions $ 1,184,236 | $ 1,914,511 $ 605426 $ 643,924
Proportionate Share of NPL 6,350,834 2,242,882 3,018,197 742,294

Changes to net pension liability from the prior period are displayed in the Schedule of Changes in
Long Term Liabilities, Note 4.

At June 30, 2019, the District’s percentage of the proportionate share of the collective net pension
liability and the change in the allocation percentage from the prior year is illustrated below:

Changes in
Proportionate Shares PERS 1 SERS 2/3 TRS 1 TRS 2/3
Allocation Percentages
Current year proportionate

share of NPL 0.165156% 0.956461% 0.121908% 0.123195%
Prior year proportionate share
of NPL 0.158295% 0.972677% 0.115316% 0.117193%

Net difference percentage 0.006861% | (0.016216)% 0.006592% 0.006002%

Actuarial Assumptions

Capital Market Assumptions (CMAs) and expected rates of return by asset class are provided by the
Washington State Investment Board. The Office of the State Actuary relied on the CMAs in the
selection of the long-term expected rate of return for reporting purposes.

The total pension liabilities for TRS 1, TRS 2/3, PERS 1 and SERS 2/3 were determined by actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2018, with the results rolled forward to June 30, 2019, using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.75% total economic inflation, 3.50% salary inflation

Salary increases In addition to the base 3.50% salary inflation assumption, salaries
are also expected to grow by promotions and longevity
Investment rate of return | 7.40%

Mortality Rates

Mortality rates used in the plans were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Table and Combined
Disabled Table published by the Society of Actuaries. The Office of the State Actuary applied offsets
to the base table and recognized future improvements in mortality by projecting the mortality rates
using 100 percent Scale BB. Mortality rates are applied on a generational basis, meaning members
are assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in each future year, throughout their
lifetime. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018, valuation were based on the results of
the 2007-2012 Experience Study and the 2017 Economic Experience Study. Additional assumptions
for subsequent events and law changes are current as of the 2018 actuarial valuation report.

Long-term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which a best-estimate of expected future rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense, but including inflation) are developed for each major asset class by
the Washington State Investment Board (WSIB). Those expected returns make up one component of
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WSIB’s CMAs. The CMAs contain three pieces of information for each class of assets the WSIB
currently invests in:

e Expected annual return

e Standard deviation of the annual return

e Correlations between the annual returns of each asset class with every other asset class

WSIB uses the CMAs and their target asset allocation to simulate future investment returns over
various time horizons.

The long-term expected rate of return of 7.40% approximately equals the median of the simulated
investment returns over a fifty-year time horizon, increased slightly to remove WSIB’s implicit and
small short-term downward adjustment due to assumed mean reversion. WSIB’s implicit short-term
adjustment, while small and appropriate over a ten to fifteen-year period, becomes amplified over a
fifty-year measurement period.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension
plans’ target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019, are summarized in the following table:

TRS1, TRS 2/3, PERS 1, and SERS 2/3

Long-term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
Fixed Income 20.00% 2.20%
Tangible Assets 7.00% 5.10%
Real Estate 18.00% 5.80%
Global Equity 32.00% 6.30%
Private Equity 23.00% 9.30%

The inflation component used to create the above table is 2.20%, and represents WSIB’s most recent
long-term estimate of broad economic inflation.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.40%. To determine the discount
rate, an asset sufficiency test was completed to test whether the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
was sufficient to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Consistent with
current law, the completed asset sufficiency test included an assumed 7.50% long-term discount rate
to determine funding liabilities for calculating future contributions rate requirements. Consistent with
the long-term expected rate of return, a 7.40% future investment rate of return on invested assets
was assumed for the test. Contributions from plan members and employers are assumed to continue
to be made at contractually required rates. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
plan members.

Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return of 7.40% on pension plan investments was applied to
determine the total pension liability.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
The Pension Plans reported collective Deferred Outflows of Resources and collective Deferred
Inflows of Resources related to the individual plans. At August 31, 2019, the District reported
Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

e Deferred Inflows
PERS 1 Outflows of of ReSoUrces
Resources
Difference between expected and actual experiences | $ -1 $ -
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Net difference between projected and actual earnings ) (424,289)
on pension plan investments ’
Changes in assumptions or other inputs - -
Changes in proportion and differences between ) )
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 183,358 -

TOTAL | $ 183,358 | $ (424,289)

Deferred
Deferred Inflows
SERS 2/3 Outflows of of Resources
Resources

Difference between expected and actual experiences $ 1,411,337 | $ -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings ) (1,904,676)
on pension plan investments T
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 68,652 (476,368)
Changes in proportion and differences between 175,901 (125,592)

contributions and proportionate share of contributions

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 295,589 -

TOTAL | $ 1,951,479 | $  (2,506,636)

e Deferred Inflows
TRS 1 Oultflows of of RESOUrces
Resources

Difference between expected and actual experiences | $ -1 $ -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings ) (231,472)
on pension plan investments ’
Changes in assumptions or other inputs - -
Changes in proportion and differences between ) )
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 106,597 -

TOTAL | $ 106,597 | $ (231,472)
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Deferred
Deferred Inflows
TRS 2/3 Oultflows of of Resources
Resources
Difference between expected and actual experiences | $ 516,129 | $ (23,885)

Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments ] (640,858)

Changes in assumptions or other inputs 279,842 (197,228)

Changes in proportion and differences between

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 45,465 (172,257)
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 112,792 -
TOTAL | $ 954,228 | $ (1,034,228)

$698,335 reported as Deferred Outflows of Resources related to pensions resulting from District
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended August 31, 2019.

Other amounts reported as Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended

August 31, PERS 1 SERS 2/3 TRS 1 TRS 2/3
2020 $ (93,664) | $ (262,852) $ 47,514) | $ (130,748)
2021 (221,863) (657,984) (124,266) (257,101)
2022 (79,174) (122,442) (43,697) (64,007)
2023 (29,588) 9,763 (15,995) 1,997
2024 - 150,520 - 56,032
Thereafter - 32,249 - 201,035

Pension Expense

The District recognizes a pension expense for its proportionate share of the collective pension
expense. This is determined by using the District’s proportionate share of the collective net pension
liability. For the year ending August 31, 2019, the District recognized pension expense from change
in the net pension liability as follows:

Pension Expense (Income) from change in NPL
PERS 1 $ (594,732)
SERS 2/3 (861,746)
TRS 1 (286,251)
TRS 2/3 (267,096)
TOTAL $ (2,009,827)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The table below presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate of 7.40%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.40%) or one percentage point higher
(8.40%) than the current rate. Amounts are calculated by plan using the District’s allocation
percentage.
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1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(6.40%) Rate (7.40%) (8.40%)
PERS1 NPL 4,815,609,000 | $§ 3,845,355,000 3,003,532,000

Allocation Percentage

0.165156%

0.165156%

0.165156%

Proportionate Share of
Collective NPL

7,953,267

$ 6,350,834

4,960,513

SERS2/3 NPL

1,141,883,000

$ 234,498,000

(513,722,000)

Allocation Percentage

0.956461%

0.956461%

0.956461%

Proportionate Share of
Collective NPL

10,921,666

$ 2,242,882

(4,913,551)

TRS1 NPL

3,164,358,000

$  2,475,803,000

1,878,531,000

Allocation Percentage

0.121908%

0.121908%

0.121908%

Proportionate Share of
Collective NPL

3,857,606

$ 3,018,197

2,290,080

TRS2/3 NPL

3,283,747,000

$ 602,534,000

(1,577,475,000)

Allocation Percentage

0.123195%

0.123195%

0.123195%

Proportionate Share of
Collective NPL

4,045,412

$ 742,294

(1,943,370)

Schedules of Required Supplementary Information
Required supplementary information is presented in the required supplementary schedules for each
plan the District participates in.

NOTE 6: POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS OTHER THAN PENSION PLANS

Access to Other Post Employment Medical Benefits through the Washington State Health Care
Authority (HCA)

Washington state, through the HCA, administers a defined benefit other post-employment (OPEB)
plan. The Public Employees Benefits Board (PEBB) created under the HCA is authorized to design
benefits and determine the terms and conditions of employee and retired employee participation and
coverage, including establishment of eligibility criteria for both active and retired employees. Eligible
retirees and spouses are entitled to subsidies associated with postemployment medical benefits
provided through PEBB.

The relationship between the PEBB OPEB plan and its employers and their employees and retirees is
not formalized in a contract or plan document. Rather, the benefits are provided in accordance with a
substantive plan. A substantive plan is one in which the plan terms are understood by the employers
and plan members. This understanding is based on communications between the HCA, employers
and plan members, and the historical pattern of practice with regard to sharing of benefit costs.

Participation in the plan is administered by HCA as a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan. No
assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 75 (GASB 75).

Valuation Date, Measurement Date and Reporting Date

The “valuation date” is July 1, 2018. This is the date as of which the census data is gathered and the
actuarial valuation is performed. The “measurement date” is August 31, 2019. This is the date as of
which the Total OPEB Liability is determined. Generally accepted accounting principles for OPEB
allows a lag of up to one year between the measurement date and the reporting date. No adjustment
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is required between the measurement date and the reporting date. The “reporting date” is the
District’s fiscal year end of August 31, 2019.

General Description

Employers participating in the PEBB OPEB plan include Washington state general government
agencies, higher education institutions, K-12 school and educational service districts and political
subdivisions. Additionally, PEBB’s OPEB plan is available to retirees of K-12 school districts and
educational service districts who do not participate in PEBB for insurance for their active employees.
RCW 41.05.085 provides that contribution requirements of participating employers and of plan
members are established by, and may be amended by, the HCA Board of Directors. Participating
employers and active plan members are required to contribute the established benefit rates. All K-12
school districts and educational service districts contribute the same rate, which is set annually, as an
amount per pro-rated FTE under RCW 28A.400.410. Employers do not have the ability to contribute
additionally to funding against future liabilities or impact funding progress on the actuarially
determined liability of the HCA’s PEBB OPEB plan. The District does not participate in PEBB for
insurance for its active employees, The District’s established contribution to PEBB for the retiree
OPEB plan for the fiscal years ending August 31, 2018 and 2019 under the required formula was
$406,332 and $464,090, respectively.

The PEBB OPEB plan provides healthcare insurance benefits (medical and dental) for retirees and
their dependents. Retired members may only elect dental coverage if they have elected medical
coverage. The PEBB OPEB plan offers thirteen (13) medical plans and three (3) dental plans. All
current and future retirees who elect medical and dental coverage are assumed to elect carriers
based on the weighted average of selection of carriers by current PEBB retirees.

Employees covered by benefit terms. District employees are eligible for retiree medical benefits
after becoming eligible for service retirement pension benefits (either reduced or full pension
benefits) under Plan 2 or 3 of TRS or SERS (see Note 5):

e Age 65 with 5 years of service for Plan 2

e Age 55 with 20 years of service for Plan 2

e Age 55 with 10 years of service for Plan 3

Former members who are entitled to a deferred vested pension benefit are not eligible to receive
medical and life insurance benefits after pension benefit commencement. Survivors of covered
members who die are eligible for medical benefits. At June 30, 2018, the following employees
were covered by benefit terms:

Retirees and dependents currently receiving benefit payments 76
Active employees who may qualify for benefits upon retirement 575

It is not possible to determine the number of inactive employees entitled to, but not yet receiving
benefit payments. Retiring employees apply for benefits at their discretion, may be otherwise
working and not eligible for benefits or be deceased. This data is not monitored by the District,
HCA or the State of Washington.

Election assumptions. 50% of employees are assumed to elect medical and dental benefits upon
retirement. 45% of employees are assumed to enroll eligible dependents as of the retirement
date. 100% of employees are assumed to enroll in Medicare, once eligible, after initial
participation.

Total OPEB Liability

The District’'s Total OPEB Liability of $9,135,740 and $13,302,524 was measured for the years
ending August 31, 2018 and 2019, respectively, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
the valuation date of July 1, 2018, calculated based on the discount rates discussed below, projected
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to the measurement dates. There have been no significant changes between the valuation date and
the fiscal year end. If there were significant changes, an additional analysis or valuation might be
required.

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The Total OPEB Liability in the July 1, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement dates,
unless otherwise specified.

Inflation. The inflation rate of 2.75% was developed by the Office of the State Actuary for
PEBB' and was applied to the measurement dates ending August 31, 2018 and 2019.

Salary increases. Salary assumptions reflect the assumptions used in the actuarial valuations
for Washington State School Employees’ Retirement System (SERS) and Teacher
Retirement System (TRS)?2. Projected payroll increases have been assumed to be 3.5%
which equals 0.75% real wage growth above inflation. Projected annual merit and longevity
increases for SERS range from 6.60% for O years of service to 0.10% for 20 years of service.
Projected annual merit and longevity increases for TRS range from 5.10% for 0 years of
service to 0.10% for 25 years of service.

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the Total OPEB Liability, as required by
generally accepted accounting principles for the Actuarial Accrued Liabililty calculated using
the Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method, was based on the yield or index rate for 20-
year Tax-Exempt General Obligation Municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or
higher (Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-bond municipal index for bonds that mature in 20
years). Discount rate assumptions were 3.96% and 2.97% for the measurement dates of
August 31, 2018 and 2019, respectively.

Demographic Assumptions. Demographic assumptions regarding retirement, mortality,
turnover, and marriage are based on assumptions used in the Office of the State Actuary’s
actuarial valuation for Washington State SERS and TRS 2, modified for the District.

e Service retirement assumptions for plans 2 and 3 were used, which vary based on
hire date and years of service.

e The assumed rates of disabilty under SERS and TRS plans 2 and 3 are less than
0.1% for ages 50 and below and continue to be low after that; demographic
assumptions assume a 0% disabilty rate for all ages.

e Mortality assumptions for SERS were used (RP-2000 base mortality table, adjusted
by -1 year for both males and females, with generational mortality adjustments using
projection scale BB).

Healthcare Cost Trends. Healthcare cost trends used in the actuarial valuation were
developed for use in the July 1, 2018 OPEB valuation for the PEBB program’, to be
performed by the Office of the State Actuary. These assumptions are summarized below and
refer to the amount by which medical costs are anticipated to exceed costs for the year

ending 2019:
. Pre-65 Retiree Post-65 Retiree Post-65 Retiree
Year Ending June 30, . . . .
Premiums & Claims Claims Premiums
2019 6.8% 3.6% 2.8%
2020-2095 6.3% to 4.5% 7.6% to 4.7% 12.5% to 4.7%

Dental costs trends are assumed to increase 1.1% to 4.0% for the year 2019-2026 and
beyond.
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Healthcare cost trends reflect the impact of the excise tax for high cost or “Cadillac” health
plans for 2022 and beyond, consistent with the curent tax code in effect.

Premium Levels. Assumed annual medical retiree contributions as of July 1, 2018, used in
the actuarial valuation are displayed below. These represent a weighted average of 2018
PEBB retiree contributions by medical plan, based on overall PEBB current retiree medical
plan election. Contribution assumptions exclude fees charged as a direct pass-through to
participating retirees.

Employee or Spouse
Non-Medicare Medicare
| Weighted average based on current PEBB retirees $8,052.58 $3,180.06

The July 1 2018 assumed annual dental retiree contributions for employee or spouse is
$547.17, representing a weighted average of 2018 PEBB retiree contributions by dental plan,
based on overall PEBB current retiree dental plan elections.

Actuarial cost method. The actuarial cost method used for determining the benefit obligations
is the Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method whereby the actuarial present value of the projected
benefits of each individual included in the valuation is allocated as a level percentage of
expected salary for each year of employment between entry age (defined as age at hire) and
assumed exit (until maximum retirement age).

" The actuarial valuation for the Washington state OPEB plan offered through PEBB under
administration of HCA can be found at
http://leg.wa.gov/osa/additionalservices/Pages/OPEB.aspx

2 The actuarial valuation for the Washington State School Employees’ Retirement System
(SERS) and Teacher Retirement System (TRS) can be found in the Department of
Retirement Systems annual Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) at
https://www.drs.wa.gov/administration/annual-report/default.htm

Claims Cost Assumptions

Subsidies provided by PEBB and valued in the actuarial valuation include the following:
e Explicit medical subsidy for post-65 retirees and spouses
e Implicit medical and dental subsidy

The explicit subsidies are monthly amounts paid per post-65 retirees and spouses. As of the valuation
date, the explicit subsidy for post-65 retirees and spouses is the lessor of $150 or 50% of the monthly
premiums. As of January 1, 2019, the subsidy was increased to $168 per month, and as of January 1,
2020, the subsidy will be increased to $183 per month. In 2019, retirees and spouses currently pay
the premium minus $168 when the premium is over $336 per month and pay half the premium when
the premium is lower than $336.

The implicit medical subsidy is the difference between the total cost of medical benefits and
premiums. For pre-65 retirees and spouses, the retiree pays the full premium amount, based on a
pool that includes active employees. Active employees will tend to be younger and healthier than
retirees on average and therefore can be expected to have lower average health costs. (For post-65
retirees and spouses, the retiree does not pay the full premium due to the explicit subsidy discussed
above.) Under generally accepted accounting principles, the total cost of benefit payments is to be
based on claims costs or age-adjusted premiums approximating claims costs. The projection of
retiree premiums is based on current amounts for the retirees’ share of the premium, projected with
the medical trend assumption, varied by age and sex. Implicit subsidies for dental coverage is also
reflected in the actuarial valuation.
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Changes in the Total OPEB Liability
The increase (decrease) in the Total OPEB Liability is detailed in the table below for the fiscal year
ending August 31:

For the year ending August 31, 2018 | August 31, 2019
Total OPEB Liability, beginning balance $ 8,838,270 $ 9,135,740
Changes for the year:
Service cost 923,519 843,752
Interest on Total OPEB Liability 339,947 391,909
Effect of plan changes - -
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses - 942,411
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs (811,286) 2,155,918
Expected benefit payments (154,710) (167,206)
Total OPEB Liability, ending balance $ 9,135,740 $ 13,302,524

Service cost represents the portion of the actuarial present value of expected benefit payments that is
attributed to the valuation year.

Changes in assumptions or inputs represents the change in the portion of changes in the Total OPEB
Liability that is not immediately recognized in OPEB expense and includes differences between
expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions, and differences between expected and
actual earnings on plan investments.

Expected benefit payments represent all benefits estimated to be payable through the PEBB OPEB
plan to current active and inactive employees as a result of their past service and expected future
service. This is the subsidy difference between the total cost of benefits and the portion of the
benefits paid by the retirees. Per employee health costs vary depending on age, number of
dependents and expected morbidity

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the
District’s Total OPEB Liability, calculated using the discount rate of 2.97%, as well as what the
District's Total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage
point lower (1.97%) or 1 percentage point higher (3.97%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
1.97% 2.97% 3.97%
Total OPEB Liability as of August 31, 2019 $16,368,852 $13,302,524 $10,951,772

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following
presents the Total OPEB Liability of the District, calculated using the current healthcare cost trend
rates as well as what the District's Total OPEB Liability would be if it were calculated using trend rates
that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current trend rates.

Current Trend
1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
Total OPEB Liability as of August 31, 2019 $10,499,401 $13,302,524 $17,166,053

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
For the year ended August 31, 2018 and 2019, the District recognized OPEB expense as follows:
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For the year ending August 31, 2018 August 31, 2019
Service cost $ 923,519 $ 843,752
Interest on Total OPEB Liability 339,947 391,909
Effect of plan changes - -
Recognition of Deferred Inflows/Outflows of
Resources:
Recognition of economic/demographic gains/losses - 91,496
Recognition of assumption changes or inputs (78,766) 130,546
OPEB Expense $ 1,184,700 $ 1,457,703

The District reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources as of the August 31, 2019

Measurement Date as follows:

Deferred Outflows | Deferred Inflows of
of Resources Resources

Differences between expected and $ 850,915 $ -
actual experience
Changes of assumptions or inputs 1,946,606 (653,754)
Contributions made subsequent to the NA NA
Measurement Date
Total $ 2,797,521 (653,754)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense is detailed in the table below. Additional future deferred
outflows and inflows of resources may impact these numbers.

Measurement Period Ending August 31,
2020 $ 222,042
2021 222,042
2022 222,042
2023 222,042
2024 222,042
Thereafter $ 1,033,557

457 Plan - Deferred Compensation Plan

District employees have the option of participating in an IRC, Section 457, deferred compensation
plan administered by the District, a state retirement system, or another governmental entity. The plan
assets and all related income are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their
beneficiaries.

403(b) Plan — Tax Sheltered Annuity (TSA)

The District offers a tax deferred annuity plan for its employees. The plan permits participants to
defer a portion of their salary until future years under the elective deferral (employee contribution
method). The District complies with IRS regulations that require school districts to have written plans
to include participating investment companies, types of investments, loans, transfers, and various
requirements. The plan is administered by CPI, (a third party administrator). The plan assets are
assets of the District's employees, not the District, and are therefore not reflected on these financial
statements.

NOTE 7: SHARED RISK POOL DISCLOSURES

Property and Liability Risk Management Pool (see also Note 8)
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The District operates a group self-funding, claims control and risk management cooperative fund for
property and casualty liabilities to member school districts and educational service districts.

Unpaid Claims Liabilities

The Cooperative establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of
claims including future claim adjustment expenses, that have been reported but not settled,
and claims that have been incurred but not reported. The length of time for which such costs
must be estimated varies depending on the coverage involved. Estimated amounts of
salvage, subrogation, and reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claims are deducted from the
liability for unpaid claims. Because actual claims costs depend on such complex factors as
inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, and damage awards, the process used in
computing claims liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount, particularly for
coverages such as general liability. Claims liabilities are recomputed periodically using a
variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to produce current estimates that reflect recent
settlements, claim frequency, and other economic and social factors. A provision for inflation
in the calculation of estimated future claims costs is implicit in the calculation because
reliance is placed both on actual historical data that reflect past inflation and on other factors
that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience. Adjustments to claims
liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the periods in which they are made.

Reinsurance

The Cooperative uses reinsurance agreements to reduce its exposure to large losses on all
types of insured events. Reinsurance permits recovery of a portion of losses from reinsurers,
although it does not discharge the primary liability of the Cooperative as direct insurer of the
risks reinsured. The Cooperative does not report reinsured risks as liabilities unless it is
probable that those risks will not be covered by reinsurers. The amount deducted from claims
liabilities as of August 31, 2019, for reinsurance was $0. Premiums ceded to reinsurers
during 2019 were $1,420,996.

Member Assessments and Unearned Member Assessments

Member assessments are collected and recognized as revenue in the period for which
insurance protection is provided. The assessment is calculated based on exposure data,
(student FTE, vehicle count, property values).

Unpaid Claims

Claims are charged to income as incurred. Claim reserves represent the accumulation of
estimates for reported, unpaid claims, and a provision for claims incurred, but not reported.
These estimates are continually reviewed and updated, and any resulting adjustments are
reflected in current earnings.

Reserve for Unallocated Loss Adjustment Expenses

The reserve for unallocated loss adjustment expenses represents the estimated cost to be
incurred with respect to the settlement of claims in process and claims incurred but not
reported. An actuarial firm estimates this liability at the end of each year. The change in the
liability each year is reflected in current earnings.

Exemption from Federal and State Taxes

Pursuant to revenue ruling number 90-74, income of Municipal Risk Pools is excluded from
gross income under IRC Section 115(1). Chapter 48.62 RCW exempts the Cooperative from
insurance premium taxes, and business and occupation taxes imposed pursuant to Chapter
82.04 RCW.

Risk Financing Limits
The following table reflects the risk financing limits on coverage policies issued and retained
by the Cooperative at August 31, 2019:
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Type of Member Self-Insured ..
C)c/)?/erage Deductibles Retention Erzzes LIS
Property $ 1,000 $ 250,000 $1,000,000,000
Equipment Breakdown $ 1,000 $ 25,000 $ 500,000,000
Liability $ - $ 250,000 $ 40,000,000
Crime $ 1,000 $ 250,000 $ 1,000,000
Commercial Crime $ 1,000 $ 5,000 $ 1,000,000
Public Official Bonds $ - $ - $ 5,000/
$ 50,000
Privacy & Network $ 1,000 $ 10,000/ $ 1,000,000
Liability $ 25,000/
$ 50,000
Terrorism - Property $ - $ - $ 100,000,000
Terrorism - NCBB $ - $ - $ 25,000,000

Excess Insurance Contracts/Reinsurance

The Cooperative maintains excess insurance contracts with several insurance carriers, which
provide various limits of coverage over the Cooperative’s self-insured retention limits. The
limits provided by these excess insurance contracts are as follows:

Excess Insurance For the Year Ending

Contracts

August 31, 2019

WSRMP - Property

$ 1,000,000,000

WSRMP - Liability

$ 40,000,000

Per-occurrence coverage limits provided by the Cooperative, including the excess insurance

limits combined with the Cooperative’s self-insured retention limits, are as follows:

Excess Insurance
Contracts

For the Year Ending
August 31, 2019

WSRMP - Property

$ 1,000,000,000

WSRMP - Liability

$ 40,000,000

Members’ Supplemental Assessments and Credits

The interlocal governmental agreement provides for supplemental assessments to members
based on actual claim experience. (During the fiscal year ending August 31, 2019, the
Cooperative did not make a supplemental assessment).

Unpaid Claims Liabilities

The Cooperative establishes a liability for both reported and unreported insured events,
which includes estimates of both future payments of losses and related claim adjustment
expenses, both allocated and unallocated. The following represents changes in those
aggregate liabilities for the Cooperative during the past two years ending August 31:
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2018 2019
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses,
beginning of year $ 997,771 $ 690,346
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses:
Provision for insured events of current year 480,505 522,852
Increases in provision for insured events of prior
years 112,007 171,278
Total Incurred 592,512 694,130

Payments:
Claims and claim adjustment expenses
attributable to insured events of current year (309,350) (236,122)
Claims and claim adjustment expenses
attributable to insured events of prior years (590,587) (365,697)

Total Payments (899,937) (601,819)
Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment
expenses, end of year $ 690,346 $ 782,657

As of the year ended August 31, 2019, $782,657 of unpaid claims and claim adjustment
expenses are presented at their net present value.

Workers' Compensation Insurance Trust

The Workers' Compensation Trust is organized pursuant to Title 51.14 RCW for the purpose of
managing workers’ compensation payroll taxes, employee claims, and safety programs. Membership
is established by execution of an agreement between the District and each local school district. The
District is also a member of the Trust.

The Trust provides industrial injury accident insurance coverage for its membership. The Trust is fully
funded by its member participants. Member contributions are calculated based on the members’
hours worked. The Trust retains responsibility for the payment of claims within specified self-insured
retention limits prior to the application of coverage provided by its excess insurance contracts. The
Trust acquires insurance from unrelated underwriters. The Trust’s per-occurrence retention limit is
$450,000 and the annual aggregate retention is $6,547,144. Since the Trust is a cooperative
program, there is a joint liability among participating members.

For the fiscal year ending August 31, 2019, there were 30 members in the pool including 29
participating school districts. A Board comprised of one designated representative from each
participating member and a five member Executive Board governs the Trust. The Executive Board
has five members elected by the Board. The District is responsible for conducting the business affairs
of the Trust. At August 31, 2019, the amount of claims liabilities totaled $6,650,752. This liability is the
District’s best estimate based on available information. Changes in the reported liability from the prior
year’s ending balance, resulted in the following:

Beginning Gzl VEEy C'?‘ms Ending Balance
Balance 9/1/2018 a“‘fzchanges 1 8/31/2019
stimates

Incurred but not Reported $ 2,001,004 $ 74112 | $ 2,075,116
Future L&l Assessments 939,409 148,383 1,087,792
Estimated Unallocated Loss 374,000 9,000 383,000
Adjustment
Claim Reserves 3,339,581 (234,737) 3,104,844
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Unemployment Compensation Insurance Pool

The Unemployment Compensation Pool is organized pursuant to Title 50.44 RCW for the purpose of
managing unemployment compensation payroll taxes and employee claims. Membership is
established by execution of an agreement between the District and each local school district. The
District is also a member of the Pool.

The Pool provides unemployment compensation coverage for members of the Pool arising from
previous employees. The Pool is fully funded by its member participants. Member districts pay a
percentage of their employee’s wages. These contributions plus investment earnings pays for
unemployment claims and for the administration of the Pool. There is provision that members can be
additionally assessed if the Pool requires additional funding.

For the fiscal year ending August 31, 2019, there were 29 members in the Pool including 28
participating school districts. The Pool is governed by a Cooperative Board, which is comprised of
one designated representative from each participating member and a five member Executive Board.
Five members elected by the Cooperative Board and the District Superintendent comprise the
Executive Board. At August 31, 2019, the amount of claims liabilities totaled $135,414. This liability is
the Pool’s best estimate based on available information. Changes in the reported liability since
August 31, 2019, resulted in the following:

- Current Year Claims .
Beginning Balance and Changes in Ending Balance

9/1/2018 Estimates 8/31/2019
Claims Reserves and ULAE $ 382,662 $ (247,248) $ 135414

NOTE 8: RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is a member of the Southwest Washington Risk Management Insurance Cooperative.
This Pool provides property and casualty insurance coverage for its membership as authorized by
Chapter 48.62 RCW. An agreement to form a pooling arrangement was made pursuant to the
provisions of Chapter 39.34 RCW, the Interlocal Cooperation Act. The Pool was formed on
September 1, 1985 to pool their self-insured losses and jointly purchase insurance and administrative
services. The District joined the Pool effective September 1, 1985.

The Pool purchases excess insurance coverage and provides related services, such as
administration, risk management, and claims administration. All coverage is on an occurrence basis.
The Pool provides the following forms of group purchased insurance coverage for its members:
Property, including owned buildings, automobiles and equipment, Equipment Breakdown,
Commercial Crime and Public Official Bonds, General Liability, Errors and Omissions Liability, and
Employment Practices Liability and Privacy and Network Liability. Members are responsible for the
first $1,000 of all property claims and the Pool is responsible for the next $1 billion. There is no
member deductible for liability claims. The Pool purchases $40 million of excess liability insurance.
The Pool is a member of Washington Schools Risk Management Pool (WSRMP) to obtain this
excess insurance.

The Pool provided the WSRMP notice of its intention to withdraw from the pool for excess property
and liability insurance for the Southwest Risk Management Insurance Cooperative and was required
to exercise its option to withdraw by January 25, 2020. The Pool rescinded the notice to withdraw
from WSRMP on December 18, 2019.

The Pool purchases additional excess crime coverage as well as required Public Official Bonds. The

Commercial Crime coverage is subject to a per-occurrence deductible of $5,000. Members are
responsible for $1,000 of that deductible amount for each claim.
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Pool members contract to automatically renew from year to year unless the member gives written
notice of its election to terminate at least 180 days prior to August 31 of any year. Termination occurs
on August 31. Even after termination, a member is still responsible for contributions to the Pool for
any unresolved, unreported, and in-process claims for the period they were a signatory to the
interlocal governmental agreement. The Pool is fully funded by its member participants.

The Pool is governed by a board of directors, which is comprised of one designated representative
from each participating member. A five member executive committee is responsible for conducting
the business affairs of the Pool. Financial statements and disclosures for the Pool can be obtained
from the following address: 2500 NE 65" Avenue, Vancouver WA 98661.

Solvency

Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 200-100 requires Pools to maintain certain levels of primary
and secondary assets to meet solvency standards. As defined in WAC 200-100-03001 total primary
assets, cash and cash equivalents less non-claim liabilities, must be at least equal to the unpaid claims
estimate at the expected level as determined by the actuary. Additionally, total primary and secondary
assets must be at least equal to the unpaid claims estimate at the 80 percent confidence level as
determined by the actuary. Secondary assets are defined as insurance receivables, real estate or other
assets (less any non-claim liabilities) the value of which can be independently verified by the state risk
manager.

Solvency Tests for Risk Management Prlm_al_ry == SEEDIEEN Al
est Test
Cash & cash equivalents $ 1,905 | $ 1,905
Investments 7,644,405 7,644,405
Receivables n.a. -
Prepaid expenses n.a. -
Total 7,646,310 7,646,310
Less: Non-claims liabilities (411,876) (411,876)
Less: Unearned member contributions - n.a.
Total primary assets $ 7,234,434
Total secondary assets $ 7,234,434
Compared to:
Claim liabilities at expected level per actuary (sum of $ 782,657
all claims liabilities)
Claim liabilities at 80% confidence level per actuary $ 2,634,657
Solvency test results MET MET

NOTE 9: NET POSITION, RESTRICTED

The District’s statement of net position reports $3,216,594 of net assets restricted for support
programs as follows as of August 31, 2019:

Support Program Amount
Restricted for Transportation Equipment $ 203,923
Restricted for Instructional Programs 2,854,645
Restricted for Non-Instructional Programs 158,026
Total Restricted for Support Programs $ 3,216,594

In the fiscal year ending August 31, 2012, the District began to self-insure for dental benefits. As
regulated by RCW 48.62, the District has been required to establish a reserve to cover up to three
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months’ worth of dental expenses for the agency. During the fiscal year ending August 31, 2019,
monthly costs averaged $25,000 per month, with a monthly range of $18,700 - $31,900. As of August
31, 2019, the reserve maintains a restricted reserve balance of $95,000.

NOTE 10: INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

Washington State Information Processing Cooperative

The District is a member of the Washington Information Processing Cooperative (WSIPC). The
WSIPC Board of Directors consists of a member of each of the nine educational service districts
(ESDs) in the state, sharing equally in the joint venture. Educational Service District No. 123 is the
fiscal agent of the joint venture and answers directly to the WSIPC Board of Directors in financial
matters.

Unaudited condensed financial information of the joint venture for the fiscal year ended August 31,
2019, is as follows:

Statement of Net Position Amount
Assets & Deferred Outflows
Current Assets $ 6,341,989
Non-Current Assets 1,811,056
Deferred Outflows - Pensions 709,558
Deferred Outflows - OPEB 807,689
Total Assets & Deferred Outflows $ 9,670,292
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Joint Venture Capital
Current Liabilities $ 698,488
Noncurrent Liabilities - Other 451,419
Noncurrent Liabilities - Net Pension Liability 3,133,685
Noncurrent Liabilities -Total OPEB Liability 4,205,218
Deferred Inflows - Pensions 1,823,235
Deferred Inflows - OPEB 194,481
Investment in Joint Venture (836,234)
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Joint Venture Capital $ 9,670,292
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Amount
Position
Operating Revenues $ 24,036,009
Less: Operating Expenses (23,957,020)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position, Operations $ 78,989

WSIPC employees participate in the Washington state retirement system; the Cooperative is required
to recognize their proportionate share of the individual plans’ net pension liability and related
component measures under generally accepted accounting principles. WSIPC's financial statements
include the proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) plans. General disclosures regarding the Washington state retirement
system and pension accounting may be found in Note 5. Specific disclosures for the PERS plan may
be found in the notes to WSIPC'’s financial statements.

WSIPC has further implemented generally accepted accounting principles for postemployment
benefits other than pensions (OPEB). WSIPC’s Total OPEB Liability and the related component
measures were determined through an actuarial valuation consistent with the actuarial valuation
method used by the nine member ESDs. General disclosures regarding the OPEB plan may be found
in Note 6. Specific disclosures for WSIPC'’s plan participation may be found in the notes to WSIPC’s
financial statements.
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The District’s share of the total Investment in the Joint Venture is a net position of $(92,915), including
the District’s share of the net pension liability and total OPEB liability. The District contributed $0 to
the Joint Venture during the fiscal years ending August 31, 2019 and 2018. There were no
distributions in the fiscal years ending August 31, 2019 and 2018. The Net Investment in Joint
venture balance in the Statement of Net Position has been recognized as an unrestricted net position
due to the loss position of the joint venture investment.

Financial statements for the joint venture may be obtained by contacting WSIPC at 2121 West Casino
Road, Everett WA 98204-1472.

NOTE 11: OTHER DISCLOSURES

Subsequent Events — Authorization for Issuance of Debt for Property Purchase

On September 24, 2019, the District’s Board of Directors passed a resolution providing for the
issuance and sale of a limited obligation bond in the principal amount of $2,450,000 at an interest rate
of 2.47% for the purpose of funding the acquisition of capital facilities. Maturity date for the bond is
set as November 1, 2029. The Office of the Superintendent of Public Instruction has approved the
Project by letter dated August 26, 2019. Bonds were issued on October 30, 2019.

The real property purchased with the bond issuance consists of two parcels:

(1) Approximately 11,400 square feet of real property with an approximately 6600 square-foot
building and improvements located at 1217 — 14™ Avenue, Longview WA. The building is
currently leased by the District for program service delivery. Total purchase price is $585,000,
with $550,000 funded by the bond issuance. The District expects to continue a sublease that
is in place, terminating August 31, 2023 for approximately 21% of the building space (see
Note 3 for the STEPS sublet lease).

(2) Approximately 152,460 square feet of real property (3.5 acres) with an approximately 9,980
square-foot building and improvements located at 1121 NE 136" Avenue, Vancouver WA.
The building will be used to house specialized and regional transportation activities for the
District. The District has executed a lease back agreement with the current property owners
through January 31, 2020 as part of the puchase and sale agreement. Total purchase price,
excluding the lease back agreement is $1,900,000.

Subsequent Events — Legal Claims

Subsequent to year end, a tort claim was filed against a party who is a participant in the District’s
Special Education Cooperative. It is possible that the District may be named as a party in this claim.
In management’s opinion, insurance coverage is adequate to cover any damages claimed and
awarded.
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Educational Service District No. 112
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

TEN YEAR CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION
SW WA WORKERS’ COMPENSATION TRUST
(THE TRUST)

SEPTEMBER 1, 2018 THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2019

This required supplementary information is an integral part of the accompanying financial statements. The
accompanying table of claims development illustrates how the Trust's earned revenues (net of
reinsurance) and investment income compare to related costs of loss (net of loss assumed by re-insurers)
and other expenses assumed by the Trust as of the end of each of the last ten years. The row sections
of the accompanying table are defined as follows:

1) Reports the total of each fiscal year's earned contribution revenues and investment
revenues, contribution revenue ceded to reinsurers, and net earned contribution revenue
and reported investment revenue.

2) Reports each fiscal year's operating costs of the Trust including overhead and claims
expenses not allocable to individual claims.

3) Reports the Trust's incurred claims and allocated claim adjustment expenses, claims
assumed by reinsurers, and net incurred claims and allocated adjustment expenses (both
paid and accrued) as originally reported at the end of the first year in which the event that
triggered coverage under the contract occurred (called policy year).

4) Reports the cumulative net amounts paid as of the end of successive years for each
policy year over a ten-year development period.

5) Reports the latest re-estimated amount of claims assumed by reinsurers as of the end of
the current year for each accident year.

6) Reports how each policy year's incurred claims increased or decreased as of the end of
successive years over a ten-year development period. This annual re-estimation results
from new information received on known claims, reevaluation of existing information on
known claims, as well as emergence of new claims not previously known.

7) Compares the latest re-estimated incurred claims amount to the amount originally
established (Section 3 of the schedule) and shows whether this latest estimate of claims
cost is greater or less than originally thought. As data for individual policy years mature,
the correlation between original estimates and re-estimated amounts is commonly used
to evaluate the accuracy of incurred claims currently recognized in less mature policy
years.

8) Reports the increase or decrease in estimated net incurred claims (Section 7 of the
schedule) as a percentage of the net incurred (Section 3 of the schedule).
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Educational Service District No. 112
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

TEN YEAR CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION
SW WA RISK MANAGEMENT COOPERATIVE
(THE RISK COOPERATIVE)
SEPTEMBER 1, 2018 THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2019

This required supplementary information is an integral part of the accompanying financial statements. The
accompanying table of claims development illustrates how the Risk Cooperative's earned revenues (net
of reinsurance) and investment income compare to related costs of loss (net of loss assumed by re-
insurers) and other expenses assumed by the Risk Cooperative as of the end of each of the last ten
years. The row sections of the accompanying table are defined as follows:

1) Reports the total of each fiscal year's earned contribution revenues and investment
revenues, contribution revenue ceded to reinsurers, and net earned contribution revenue
and reported investment revenue.

2) Reports each fiscal year's operating costs of the Risk Cooperative including overhead
and claims expenses not allocable to individual claims.

3) Reports the Risk Cooperative's incurred claims and allocated claim adjustment expenses,
claims assumed by reinsurers, and net incurred claims and allocated adjustment
expenses (both paid and accrued) as originally reported at the end of the first year in
which the event that triggered coverage under the contract occurred (called policy year).

4) Reports the cumulative net amounts paid as of the end of successive years for each
policy year over a ten-year development period.

5) Reports the latest re-estimated amount of claims assumed by reinsurers as of the end of
the current year for each accident year.

6) Reports how each policy year's incurred claims increased or decreased as of the end of
successive years over a ten-year development period. This annual re-estimation results
from new information received on known claims, reevaluation of existing information on
known claims, as well as emergence of new claims not previously known.

7) Compares the latest re-estimated incurred claims amount to the amount originally
established (Section 3 of the schedule) and shows whether this latest estimate of claims
cost is greater or less than originally thought. As data for individual policy years mature,
the correlation between original estimates and re-estimated amounts is commonly used
to evaluate the accuracy of incurred claims currently recognized in less mature policy
years.

8) Reports the increase or decrease in estimated net incurred claims (Section 7 of the
schedule) as a percentage of the net incurred (Section 3 of the schedule).
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Educational Service District No. 112
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SW WA WORKERS' COMPENSATION TRUST
RECONCILIATION OF CLAIMS LIABILITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2019

Unpaid Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses at
Beginning of the Fiscal Year

Add Incurred Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses:
Provision for Insured Events of the Current Fiscal Year
Provision for Insured Events of the Current Fiscal Year -
L&l Assessments

Increases (Decreases) in Provision for Insured Events of
Prior Years

Changes in Provision for ULAE

Total Incurred Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses

Less Payments:
Claim Expenses Attributable to Insured Events of the

Current Year

Claim Expenses Attributable to Insured Events of Prior
Years

Washington State L&l Assessment Payments

Total Payments

Total Unpaid Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses at
the End of the Year

Components:

Reserve for Open Claims

Claims Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR)
Unallocated Loss Adjustment Exp (ULAE)
Washington State L&l Assessment (L&l)

Total Claims Liabilities

For the Years Ending August 31,

2018 2019
6,341,263 6,653,094
3,100,000 3,800,000
2,418,208 2,688,758

511,000 (805,500)
10,000 9,000
6,039,208 5,692,258
1,093,426 1,310,111
2,453,062 1,845,014
2,179,989 2,540,375
5,726,477 5,695,500
6,653,994 6,650,752
3,339,581 3,104,844
2,001,004 2,075,116
374,000 383,000
939,409 1,087,792
6,653,994 6,650,752
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Educational Service District No. 112
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SW WA RISK MANAGEMENT COOPERATIVE

RECONCILIATION OF CLAIMS LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2019

For the Years Ending August 31,

2018 2019
Unpaid Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses at
Beginning of the Fiscal Year $ 997,771 $ 690,346
Add Incurred Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses:
Provision for Insured Events of the Current Fiscal Year 480,505 522,853
Increases (Decreases) in Provision for Insured Events of
Prior Years 131,007 166,278
Changes in Provision for ULAE (19,000) 5,000
Total Incurred Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses 592,512 694,131
Less Payments:
Claim Expenses Attributable to Insured Events of the
Current Year 309,350 236,122
Claim Expenses Attributable to Insured Events of Prior
Years 590,587 365,698
Total Payments 899,937 601,820
Total Unpaid Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses at the
End of the Year $ 690,346 $ 782,657
Components:
Reserve for Open Claims $ 357,711 $ 407,249
Claims Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) 287,635 325,408
Unallocated Loss Adjustment Exp (ULAE) 45,000 50,000
Total Claims Liabilities $ 690,346 $ 782,657
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Educational Service District No. 112
OTHER INFORMATION

TEN YEAR CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION
SW WA UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION POOL
(THE POOL)

SEPTEMBER 1, 2018 THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2019

The accompanying table of claims development illustrates how the Pool's earned revenues (net of
reinsurance) and investment income compare to related costs of loss (net of loss assumed by re-insurers)
and other expenses assumed by the Pool as of the end of each of the last ten years. The row sections of
the accompanying table are defined as follows:

1) Reports the total of each fiscal year's earned contribution revenues and investment
revenues, contribution revenue ceded to reinsurers, and net earned contribution revenue
and reported investment revenue.

2) Reports each fiscal year's operating costs of the Pool including overhead and claims
expenses not allocable to individual claims.

3) Reports the Pool's incurred claims and allocated claim adjustment expenses, claims
assumed by reinsurers, and net incurred claims and allocated adjustment expenses (both
paid and accrued) as originally reported at the end of the first year in which the event that
triggered coverage under the contract occurred (called policy year).

4) Reports the cumulative net amounts paid as of the end of successive years for each
policy year over a ten-year development period.

5) Reports the latest re-estimated amount of claims assumed by reinsurers as of the end of
the current year for each accident year.

6) Reports how each policy year's incurred claims increased or decreased as of the end of
successive years over a ten-year development period. This annual re-estimation results
from new information received on known claims, reevaluation of existing information on
known claims, as well as emergence of new claims not previously known.

7) Compares the latest re-estimated incurred claims amount to the amount originally
established (Section 3 of the schedule) and shows whether this latest estimate of claims
cost is greater or less than originally thought. As data for individual policy years mature,
the correlation between original estimates and re-estimated amounts is commonly used
to evaluate the accuracy of incurred claims currently recognized in less mature policy
years.
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Educational Service District No. 112
OTHER INFORMATION

SW WA UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION POOL
RECONCILIATION OF CLAIMS LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2019

Unpaid Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses at
Beginning of the Fiscal Year

Add Incurred Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses:
Provision for Insured Events of the Current Fiscal Year
Increases (Decreases) in Provision for Insured Events of

Prior Years
Changes in Provision for ULAE

Total Incurred Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses

Less Payments:
Claim Expenses Attributable to Insured Events of the

Current Year
Claim Expenses Attributable to Insured Events of Prior
Years

Total Payments

Total Unpaid Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses at the
End of the Year

For the Years Ending August 31,

2018 2019

$ 335,900 $ 382,662
581,139 547,800
(41,139) (85,043)

11,658 (260,134)

551,658 202,623
482,589 436,980

22,307 12,891

504,896 449,871

$ 382,662 $ 135,414
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Educational Service District No. 112
OTHER INFORMATION

SW WA WORKERS’ COMPENSATION TRUST
PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOL
LIST OF PARTICIPATING MEMBERS

AS OF AUGUST 31, 2019

Battle Ground School District No.119
Camas School District No.117

Castle Rock School District No.401
Centerville School District No.215
Educational Service District No.112
Evergreen School District No.114
Glenwood School District No.401

Green Mountain School District No.103
Hockinson School District No.8

Kalama School District No.402

Kelso School District No.458

Klickitat School District No.402

LaCenter School District No.101
Longview School District No.122

Lyle School District No.406

Mill A School District No.31

Mount Pleasant School District No.029-93
Naselle-Grays River School District No.155
Ocean Beach School District No.101
Ridgefield School District No.122
Roosevelt School District No.403
Skamania School District No.2
Stevenson-Carson School District No.303
Toutle Lake School District No.130

Trout Lake School District No.R-400
Wahkiakum School District No.200
Washougal School District No.112-6
White Salmon Valley School District No.405-17
Wishram School District No.94

Woodland School District No.404
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Educational Service District No. 112
OTHER INFORMATION

SW WA WORKERS' COMPENSATION TRUST
DES SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2019

Excess Insurance $ 158,474

Contracted Services:
Third Party Administrator Fees -

Actuarial 49,840
Audit Expenses -
Brokerage Fees 10,991
Legal Fees 2,610
Other Consultant Fees 5,477

General Administrative Expenses:

Personnel Services 603,059
Communication & Network 25,460
Supplies and Materials 14,530
Dues and Conferences 2,389
Retreat/Board Meetings 602
Training 3,744
Travel 8,198
Occupancy 40,162
Printing/Copier 5,668

Miscellaneous -

Other:
Claims Paid 3,164,529
Change in Claim Reserves (3,242)
Labor & Industry Assessment 2,540,375
Right to Know 20,039
Safe Schools Online Training 24,840
Pension Expense from Change in Net Pension Liability (132,377)
OPEB Expense from Change in Total OPEB Liabilty (73,316)
Return to Work-District Reimbursement 51,063
Miscellaneous 16,163
Total Operating Expenses $ 6,539,278
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Educational Service District No. 112
OTHER INFORMATION

SW WA RISK MANAGEMENT COOPERATIVE
PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOL
LIST OF PARTICIPATING MEMBERS

AS OF AUGUST 31, 2019

Bickleton School District No.203

Camas School District No.117

Castle Rock School District No.401

Centerville School District No.215

East Valley (Yakima) School District No.90
Educational Service District No.112

Glenwood School District No.401

Green Mountain School District No.103
Kalama School District No.402

Kelso School District No.458

Klickitat School District No.402

KWRL Transportation

La Center School District No.101

Lyle School District No.406

Mabton School District No.120

Mill A School District No.31

Mount Pleasant School District No.029-93
Naselle-Grays River School District No.155
Ocean Beach School District No.101
Roosevelt School District No.403

Skamania School District No.2
Stevenson-Carson School District No.303
Toutle Lake School District No.130

Trout Lake School District No.R-400
Wahkiakum School District No.200

Washougal School District No.112-6

White Salmon Valley School District No.405-17
Wishram School District No.94

Woodland School District No.404

(WSIPC) Washington School Information Processing Cooperative
Southwest Washington Unemployment Compensation Pool
Southwest Washington Workers’ Compensation Trust
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Educational Service District No. 112
OTHER INFORMATION

SW WA RISK MANAGEMENT COOPERATIVE
DES SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2019

Excess Insurance $ 1,420,996

Contracted Services:
Third Party Administrator Fees -
Actuarial 41,447
Audit Expenses -
Brokerage Fees -
Legal Fees -
Other Consultant Fees -

General Administrative Expenses:

Personnel Services 443,276
Communication & Network 17,107
Supplies and Materials 1,923
Dues and Conferences 4,358
Retreat/Board Meetings -
Training 13,390
Travel 6,781
Occupancy 23,401
Printing/Copier 3,381

Miscellaneous -

Other:
Claims Paid 601,819
Change in Claim Reserves 92,311
State Risk Manager Fee 11,720
Refund to Member Districts -
Experienced Administrator Consultation 52,837
Pre-Loss Attorney Consultation 2,444
Pension Expense from Change in Net Pension Liability (32,435)
OPEB Expense from Change in Total OPEB Liabilty (27,090)
Miscellaneous 80,000
Total Operating Expenses $ 2,757,666
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Educational Service District No. 112
OTHER INFORMATION

SW WA UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION POOL
PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOL
LIST OF PARTICIPATING MEMBERS

AS OF AUGUST 31, 2019

Camas School District No.117

Castle Rock School District No.401
Centerville School District No.215
Educational Service District No.112
Evergreen School District No.114
Glenwood School District No.401

Green Mountain School District No.103
Hockinson School District No.98

Kalama School District No.402

Kelso School District No.458

Klickitat School District No.402

LaCenter School District No.101
Longview School District No.122

Lyle School District No.406

Mill A School District No.31

Mount Pleasant School District No.029-93
Naselle-Grays River School District No.155
Ocean Beach School District No.101
Ridgefield School District No.122
Roosevelt School District No.403
Skamania School District No.2
Stevenson-Carson School District No.303
Toutle Lake School District No.130

Trout Lake School District No. R-400
Wahkiakum School District No.200
Washougal School District No.112-6
White Salmon Valley School District No.405-17
Wishram School District No.94

Woodland School District No.404
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Educational Service District No. 112
OTHER INFORMATION

SW WA UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION POOL
DES SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2019

Excess Insurance $ -

Contracted Services:
Third Party Administrator Fees
Actuarial 20,274
Audit Expenses -
Brokerage Fees -
Legal Fees 209
Other Consultant Fees 5,477

General Administrative Expenses:

Personnel Services 186,679
Communication & Network 4,786
Supplies and Materials 1,804
Dues and Conferences 273
Retreat/Board Meetings -
Training 2,090
Travel 3,193
Occupancy 12,081
Printing/Copier 850

Miscellaneous

Other:
Claims Paid 449,871
Change in Claim Reserves (247,248)
Pension Expense from Change in Net Pension Liability (17,720)
OPEB Expense from Change in Total OPEB Liabilty (14,153)
Miscellaneous 196
Total Operating Expenses $ 408,662
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ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE

The State Auditor’s Office is established in the state’s Constitution and is part of the executive
branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the citizens of Washington and serves
four-year terms.

We work with our audit clients and citizens to achieve our vision of government that works for
citizens, by helping governments work better, cost less, deliver higher value, and earn greater
public trust.

In fulfilling our mission to hold state and local governments accountable for the use of public
resources, we also hold ourselves accountable by continually improving our audit quality and
operational efficiency and developing highly engaged and committed employees.

As an elected agency, the State Auditor’s Office has the independence necessary to objectively
perform audits and investigations. Our audits are designed to comply with professional standards
as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state, and local laws.

Our audits look at financial information and compliance with state, federal and local laws on the
part of all local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of
higher education. In addition, we conduct performance audits of state agencies and local
governments as well as fraud, state whistleblower and citizen hotline investigations.

The results of our work are widely distributed through a variety of reports, which are available on
our website and through our free, electronic subscription service.

We take our role as partners in accountability seriously, and provide training and technical
assistance to governments, and have an extensive quality assurance program.

Contact information for the State Auditor’s Office

Public Records requests | PublicRecords@sao.wa.gov

Main telephone | (564) 999-0950

Toll-free Citizen Hotline | (866) 902-3900

Website | www.sa0.wa.gov

Office of the Washington State Auditor Page 83


https://www.sao.wa.gov/report-a-concern/how-to-report-a-concern/fraud-program/
https://www.sao.wa.gov/report-a-concern/how-to-report-a-concern/whistleblower-program/
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https://www.sao.wa.gov/reports-data/audit-reports/
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